1967-07

Necrology
NECROLOGY

Dr. Ralph Vandervort Bangham died suddenly and unexpectedly on August 29, 1966, at his home at 1004 North Bever Street, Wooster, Ohio. He had joined the Ohio Academy of Science in 1923 and belonged to Section A, Zoology. He became a Fellow of the Academy in 1924 and was accorded Emeritus membership when he retired from the College of Wooster in 1963.

Dr. Bangham was born on a farm near Wilmington, Ohio, on February 28, 1895. He attended Wilmington College which awarded him a A.B. degree in 1915. He then went to Haverford College where he earned the B.S. degree in 1916 and the A.M. in 1917. He received his Ph.D. degree from The Ohio State University in 1923. Early in his academic career he taught at Haverford College, at Texas A. and M. Junior College, and at Baylor University. He was long identified with the College of Wooster where he taught for 40 years. He was appointed assistant professor in 1923 and became chairman of the Department of Biology in 1926, a position he held until his retirement in 1963. He still continued his career as a teacher by serving as visiting professor at Winthrop College at Rock Hill, South Carolina, 1963-64, and then at Southwestern College at Memphis, Tennessee. In the summer of 1965 he was a visiting professor of zoology at Southern Illinois University, Carbondale, where he taught a course on parasitology.

His publications, consisting of more than 30 titles, were concerned chiefly with the parasites of fish, his special field of interest. His research took him to field stations or laboratories such as the Franz Theodore Stone Laboratory at Put-in-Bay, Ohio; Jackson Hole Wildlife Laboratory, Wyoming; Reelfoot Laboratory in western Tennessee; the rivers and lakes in Wisconsin; Rocky Mountain Biological Laboratory; and the University of British Columbia.

In addition to being a Fellow in the Ohio Academy of Science, he served as Vice President of Section A (Zoology) in 1925. In addition, he was a Fellow of AAAS, and a member of the American Zoologists Society, American Society of Parasitologists, American Fisheries Society, Ecological Society of America, American Micros Society, Limnological Society, American Association of University Professors, American Society of Naturalists, Society of Systematic Zoology, Phi Chi, Gamma Alpha, and Sigma Xi. He was also a member of the Society of Friends.

He is survived by his wife, Margaret, and a daughter, Jean.

Loren E. Bollinger, assistant professor in the Department of Aeronautical and Astronautical Engineering at The Ohio State University, died on May 23, 1966, at the age of 40. His death is still listed as an unsolved homicide by Columbus police. Shortly before his death, he had rented a downtown office which was to be used for his non-University interests. It was here that he lost his life.

He joined the Academy in 1963 and was identified with Section E, Physics and Astronomy. He was also active in the Visiting Scientists Program both before and after joining the Academy. Professor Bollinger was born in East Canton, Ohio, on March 24, 1926. He attended Mount Union College for a time, and then transferred to The Ohio State University, where he received the Bachelor of Electrical Engineering (B.E.E.) in 1948. He received the M.S. degree in 1956.

In his professional work Professor Bollinger was identified chiefly with research rather than with teaching. He was a research associate with the Cryogenic Laboratory and the Propulsion Rocket Laboratory at The Ohio State University. His research at the University brought him opportunities to serve as electronics engineer at Wright-Patterson Air Force Base, and as consultant to North American Aviation and to Industrial Nucleonics. His special interest in combustion, rockets, propellants, and nuclear devices is represented by his membership in the American Rocket Society and its successor organization, the American Institute of Aeronautics and Astronautics. He was also a member of the American Ordnance Association, the Instrument Society of America, Sigma Xi, and Sigma Gamma Tau (honorary aeronautical engineering society). At the time of his death, he was serving as editor-in-chief of ISA Transactions, a national technical publication of the Instrument Society of America. He also wrote a newspaper column, “Man and Missiles” for the Columbus Evening Dispatch.

Professor Bollinger was not married. He is survived by his father, Albert Bollinger, of East Canton.

Dr. Clifford R. Cutright, Professor Emeritus in the Department of Zoology and Entomology at the Ohio Agricultural and Development Center, died at his home in Wooster, Ohio, on April 10, 1966. Dr. Cutright was born on June 20, 1893, in Buckhannon, West Virginia. Early in his life he developed an interest in natural phenomena. Upon graduation from high school, he accepted a position as a laboratory assistant at the West Virginia Agricultural Experiment Station. He later taught in the public schools in West Virginia and at Davis and Elkins College, Elkins, West Virginia. During the summers, from 1912 to 1917, he was a field assistant with the U. S. Bureau of Entomology.

In 1917 he enlisted as a private in the United States Army and was successively promoted in rank until he became Commander of an Infantry Machine-Gun Company. His interest in military service continued through college, where he served as a Cadet Captain, Major, and Colonel in R.O.T.C. at The Ohio State University.

To prepare himself for a career in his chosen field of entomology, he studied in the Department of Zoology and Entomology at The Ohio State University. He received his B.A. degree in 1921, his M.S. in 1922, and his Ph.D. in 1925. In June, 1922, he joined the staff of the Ohio Agricultural Experiment Station and devoted the next 40 years of his life to specialized research on the many aspects of the biology and control of arthropod pests of deciduous-tree fruits. In the course of his long career as an entomologist, he developed an international reputation as an authority on deciduous-fruit insects and mites. He was the author of more than 175 scientific papers, many of them representing significant contributions to the literature on the aphids of Ohio, the codling moth, European red mite, apple maggot, and red-banded leafroller. Among the apple growers of Ohio, he was held in high esteem, for his researches made possible a high-quality apple crop.

For many years Dr. Cutright and his wife, who is a physician, had been interested in Latin America. Both were fluent in Spanish and made a number of trips to Chile, Venezuela, Argentina, and Brazil. He assisted entomologists in these countries with their insect problems and lectured at a number of universities in South America.

Dr. Cutright is survived by his widow, Eva Goddin, 458 Beall Avenue, Wooster, Ohio; two sons, Holt and Phillips; a daughter, Mrs. Paul Tape; five grandchildren; a brother, Dr. Paul R. Cutright of Pennsylvania; and a sister, Mrs. Marjorie Carter of West Virginia.

Professor Raymond H. Dehnbostel, Professor of Psychology at Youngstown University, died on January 14, 1967, at the age of 65. He was born on June 6, 1901 in Ridgewood Corners, Ohio. His early interest was in music and he received his bachelor's and master's degrees in music from the Dana Musical Institute in Youngstown. He was well known as a musician and as a band leader. He was the first director of the VFW Boy's Band, Antlers Boy's Band, and Trumbull Fadettes Girls' Band. He also earned a bachelor's and a master's degree in education from Kent State University. He also studied at Western Reserve University. He taught for a number of years in the public schools of Geauga and Trumbull Counties and served as assistant county superintendent in the Geauga County schools.

He was a member of the faculty at Youngstown University for 21 years. At the time of his death he was Professor of Psychology. He joined the Academy in 1966.

He was married to Nellie Gwynne on June 17, 1926. Besides his widow, he leaves a sister, Mrs. Dale (Irene) Claire of Chelsea, Michigan.

C. Eugene Deimling, an administrator in Penta-County Schools, died on December 10, 1965, at his home, 1206 Dixie Highway, Rossford, Ohio, after an illness of one year. He was supervisor of public information, research, and government programs for the Penta-County system, a position he had held since its creation.

Mr. Deimling was born in Perrysburg on July 30, 1922, and was 43 at the time of his death. He had lived in the Toledo area all of his life. He received his B.S. degree from Bowling Green State University in 1945 and his M.S.A. from Western Reserve University in 1948. He also studied at the University of Louisville's School of Medicine and served as a medical corpsman in the U.S. Navy during World War II. He worked for the Rossford Army Depot, the American Metalcraft Company as a consulting chemical engineer, and for the DeVilbiss Company as assistant chief chemist. In 1951 he was named principal of Monclova High School. He taught chemistry and physics at Rossford, Perrysburg, Liberty Township, and Maumee high schools before joining the administrative staff at the Penta-County school system.

Mr. Deimling was President of the Rossford Education Association for two years before his death. He was a member of the National, Ohio, and Northwestern Ohio Education Associations, and the Northwestern Ohio Association of Science Teachers. As a member of the Academy he was affiliated with Section H, Science Education. He was a member of the Zion Lutheran Church, Waterville, Ohio.

He is survived by his widow, Betty, and by two daughters, Jeanne Lynn and Debra Kay.

Professor Roscoe H. Eckelberry, a long-time member of the faculty of the Department of Education, The Ohio State University, died on October 27, 1966. He was 75. Dr. Eckelberry was born in Zaleski, Vinton County, Ohio, on April 11, 1891. He received the B.S. in Education in 1922, the M.A. degree in 1923, and the Ph.D. in 1927, all from The Ohio State University. Before he received his baccalaureate degree, he taught three years in an elementary school and two years in high school. After serving 14 months in World War I, he completed his undergraduate program at The Ohio State University. He was successively: an assistant in the history and philosophy of education, 1922-23; instructor in history of education, 1923-26; assistant professor, 1926-33; associate professor, 1933-39; and professor, 1939 to 1961, when he became professor emeritus. During this long period of service to The Ohio State University, he was also editor of the Journal of Higher Education, 1943—1960, and editor of the Educational Research Bulletin, 1943—1961.

In the last 25 years of his life, Dr. Eckelberry developed an enlightened interest in conservation. He was a member of the Ohio Conservation Laboratory from 1945 to 1949 and from 1957 to the time of his death, and served as Director of the Laboratory for the period 1950-56. He was also a member of the Board of Directors of the Conservation Education Association, 1953-55. He was a member of the National Committee on Policies in Conservation Education, 1945-51, and served as chairman of the Committee, 1951-53.
In his capacity as an editor he had opportunity to write frequently on a wide variety of educational topics. He wrote *The History of the Municipal University in the United States*, published by the U. S. Office of Education, 1932. He contributed articles to the *School Review, North Central Quarterly, Journal of Soil and Water Conservation*, and the *Encyclopedia of Educational Research*. At the time of his death, he was writing a history of the Muskingum Watershed Conservancy District.

Dr. Eckelberry was a member of Phi Beta Kappa, Isaak Walton League, Conservation Education Association, Ohio Forestry Association, and the National Education Association. He joined the Academy in 1959 and belonged to Section H, Science Education.

He is survived by his widow, Helen, a son, James, and a daughter, Martha.

**Robert B. Faris, Jr.**, died on October 23, 1966, in Cleveland, Ohio, of a heart attack. He was 50 years of age. He was a graduate of DePauw University, Greencastle, Indiana, and received his Master's degree from Western Reserve University. He had been employed for many years at the Standard Oil Company of Ohio (Sohio) Research Laboratory in Warrensville Heights as Senior Chemist, Patent Coordinator, and Safety Director. In March, 1966, he received his 25-year pin in recognition of his many years of service with Sohio.

He was a member of the American Chemical Society, AAAS, and the Cleveland Chapter of Sigma Xi. He joined the Ohio Academy in 1961 and belonged to Section G, Chemistry. He was active in Boy Scouts and was an officer in the Solon Sportsman's Association.

He is survived by his widow, Nina R., of 5311 SOM Center Road, Solon, Ohio, and two daughters, Marcia and Judith.

**Charles Mathias Goethe**, banker, philanthropist, and conservationist, died on July 10, 1966, in Sacramento, California. He was born on March 28, 1875, and, at the time of his death, had attained the age of 91. Mr. Goethe was born in Sacramento and as a young man joined his father in the banking business, after he had studied banking methods in New York and Pittsburgh. After working many years in the field of finance and banking, he and his wife, whom he married in 1903, devoted their personal and financial resources to human betterment. One of their first projects was the establishment of the first playground in Sacramento. They also gave support to many other projects, such as California's first tuberculosis sanitarium, the Sacramento Junior (now City) College, the Capitol Mall, and the Sacramento-Yolo Port District. They travelled widely and studied wild life in Manchuria, the Yukon, the Magellan Territory of Southern Chile, Patagonia, Ceylon, New Zealand, Germany, and other areas in Europe.

Mr. Goethe's interests were well represented by his affiliation in and financial support of numerous organizations. He was a Fellow of the Eugenics Society of Great Britain, and was a member of American Genetics Association; Save-the-Redwoods League; Golden Bears Society; Eugenics Society of Australia; Nova Scotia Institute of Science; the Academies of Science of California, New York, British Columbia, Ohio, and Texas; American Association of Museums; American Association for Gifted Children; American Geographic Society; Children's Museums; National Audubon Society; Natural History Association; Population Reference Bureau; English Speaking Union; American Scandinavian Foundation; American Wilderness Society; Appalachian Trailways Conference; Isaak Walton League; San Francisco Zoological Society; Sierra Club; Condor Club; S.A.R.; Omricon Delta Alpha; and others. He was a member of the Capital City (Sacramento) Lodge of Free and Accepted Masons, Scottish Rite Bodies, and Ben Ali Temple of the Shrine.

Mr. Goethe joined the Ohio Academy of Science in 1952 and was elected a Patron in 1965, in appreciation of his annual gifts to the Academy. He was affiliated with Section K, Genetics. All his books and library were presented to the Librarian, Sacramento State College. His closest surviving relatives include four nieces: Mrs. Elefa Schooler of San Francisco, Mrs. Robert Ross of Tujunga, Mrs. Jack Roberts of Eureka, and Mrs. Dan Sanches of Susanville, all of California.

**Charles E. Hammon**, Safety Director of the Columbus and Southern Ohio Electric Company, died on February 14, 1967, at the age of 61. He was a member of the Southeast (Columbus) Lion's Club, Society of Safety Engineers, Columbus Maennerchor, Capital City Lodge (F. & A.M.), Scottish Rite, Aladdin Shrine, and Southern Way Chapter of the Eastern Star. He joined the Ohio Academy of Science in 1964 and belonged to Section D, Medical Sciences. He was also a member of St. Paul's Episcopal Church.

Mr. Hammon's survivors include his widow, Carrie, a daughter, Maryann, a brother, Thomas, and two sisters, Mrs. Betty Luke and Mrs. Dorothy Hennessey.

**Dr. George J. Hamwi**, Chief of the Division of Endocrinology and Metabolism, College of Medicine, The Ohio State University, died unexpectedly on February 14, 1967, at the age of 52. Dr. Hamwi was a native of New York City and attended Columbia University from 1932-1935. He received his B.S. and M.D. degrees from the American University of Beirut in 1936 and 1940, respectively. In 1947, The Ohio State University awarded him the Master's degree in medical science. He was Chief Resident in Medicine at St. Francis Hospital in Columbus, 1947-48, and then received additional training at the Cornell University College of Medicine. He was appointed Assistant Professor in the College of Medicine, The Ohio State University,
in the Endocrinology and Metabolism division in 1950, and was advanced to associate professor in 1950 and to professor in 1958. In addition, he was named Director of the Clinical Research Unit, an interdepartmental research facility, supported by the National Institute of Health, in 1950.

Dr. Hamwi was President of the Ohio State Medical Association in 1962-63; founder and President of the Central Ohio Diabetes Association; Chairman and President of the Council on Foods and Nutrition of the American Medical Association; Director of Ohio Medical Indemnity; Fellow of the American College of Physicians, and of the American Geriatric Society; affiliate, Royal Society of Medicine (London); and member of the Columbus Academy of Medicine, A.A.A.S., Dipl. Amer. Board International Medicine, Ohio Society of Internal Medicine, American Society of Internal Medicine, Institute of Nutrition and Food Technology, Central Ohio Heart Association, American Cancer Society, Ohio Academy of Science (Section D, Medical Science). He served in the U. S. Naval Reserve, 1941-46.

Dr. Hamwi is survived by his widow, Isabel Roberts; by three sons, George J. Jr., Paul Roberts, and Alan Hoffman; one grandson; his mother; two sisters; and one brother.

William R. Hansen was born on March 13, 1927, and died on August 14, 1966, following an automobile accident. He was a graduate of Capital University (B.Sc., 1951) and attained professional recognition as a metallurgist, participating in studies of plate and pipe-line steels. His recent research centered on the study of cold forging and on the forging of torsion-bar suspension springs. He was employed briefly by Columbus Coated Fabrics, but transferred to Battelle Memorial Institute where he was employed as a metallurgist for 15 years, 1951-1966.

Mr. Hansen was a member of the American Society of Metals; the American Institute of Mining, Metallurgical, and Petroleum Engineers; the Ohio Academy of Science (Section G, Chemistry); and Delta Phi Alpha, an honorary German language society. He served on Committee E-3, on hydrogen in steel, of the American Society for Testing and Materials.

Dr. Harry Virgil Knorr died November 13, 1966, at the age of 69. He was born at Berwick, Pennsylvania, on August 24, 1897. He received his B.S. degree from Susquehanna College in 1917. He studied at the University of Chicago in the summers of 1921-24 and during 1925-27. He was awarded the Ph.D. degree by The Ohio State University in 1931, with a major in Physics. He began his teaching career at Central Wesleyan College, where he taught physics from 1920 to 1925. He was an assistant at The Ohio State University, 1928-30. At Antioch, where he served 32 years on the faculty, he was Assistant Professor 1930-33, Associate Professor 1933-34, and Professor 1949-62, when he became professor emeritus. He was Assistant Director of the Charles F. Kettering Research Laboratory, 1954-1962, and Director of the Antioch Project of the Charles F. Kettering Foundation, 1942-1953. After 1962 he became a consultant to the Laboratory. He served in the U. S. Army in 1917-18 and during World War II. During 1943-45, he was research associate and professor of physics, the Underwater Sound Laboratory, Harvard University. He was a civilian with the Office of Scientific Research and Development, 1944, and he served as professor of Research Engineering, Ordnance Research Laboratory, Pennsylvania State College, 1945.

Dr. Knorr was a Fellow of the American Physical Society and had served as President of the Ohio Section of the Society. He was a member of the Optical Society of America and the American Association for the Advancement of Science. He became a member of the Ohio Academy of Science in 1947, a fellow in 1948, and Vice President of Section F, Physics and Astronomy, in 1950-51. He was Chairman of the Trustees of the Research Fund of the Academy, 1957-58, and again in 1960-61.

Dr. Knorr was active in the Masonic Lodge in the Dayton area and held the important rank of Knight Templar. He lectured often on "Chlorophyll and Photosynthesis." As a hobby he made an extensive study of the Dead Sea Scrolls.

He is survived by his widow, Miriam, a daughter, Patricia, and a son, Robert.

Clara Gould Mark, a geologist and paleobotanist of distinction, was born at Franklin Furnace, Ohio, January 23, 1882, and died in Westerville on September 23, 1966, at the age of 84. She received the B.A. degree in geology at The Ohio State University in 1906 and the M.A. degree in 1910.

Her interests were chiefly in natural science, but she permitted herself to be attracted to other fields and issues if they needed support. She taught geology at a number of colleges and universities, including Mount Holyoke College 1910-11, The Ohio State University, 1913-17, Ohio Wesleyan University 1920-21, and Indiana University. Because of a physical handicap she was unable to continue an active career in teaching and field work. However, her more or less sedentary life permitted her to continue laboratory and library work in fields that interested her. There are four listings of her work in the publications of the Ohio Geological Survey and two titles listed in the 60-Year Index of the Ohio Journal of Science.

She maintained membership in a large number of societies and organizations, such as the Paleontological Society, American Fern Society, Sullivant Moss Society, Sigma Xi, Ohio State Historical Society, National Geneological Society, Institute of American Genealogy, D.A.R.,
Ohio State University Alumni Association, American Defenders of Wildlife, Bryological Society, American Museum of Natural History, American Forestry Association, National Parks Association, National Wildlife Association, National Audubon Society, and Wilderness Society. She was a member of the American Association for the Advancement of Science for more than 50 years, at which time the Association presented her with a certificate in honor of her half-century of membership. She joined the Ohio Academy of Science, Section C (Geology), in 1910 and became a Fellow in 1920.

Surviving members of her immediate family include a brother, Robert M. of Manor, Pa., and an older sister, Mary Louise Mark of Westerville, Ohio.

Dr. Mildred Fisher Marple was born in Columbus, Ohio, on November 11, 1898, and died in Arlington, Virginia, on August 5, 1966. She was the sister of Dudley T. Fisher, a well-known cartoonist for the Columbus Dispatch. She received her B.A. degree in 1921, the M.A. degree in 1922, and the Ph.D. in 1950, all from The Ohio State University. She taught geology at Wellesley College, 1923–24. She was an assistant instructor in geology at Ohio State University, 1950–59, made assistant professor in 1959, and then retired in the same year. She served as Curator of The Ohio State University Geology (Orton) Museum, 1950–1959, and was employed concurrently by the Ohio Geological Survey for a number of years. She was co-author with Aurele LaRocque of Ohio Fossils, published by the Ohio Geological Survey.

Mrs. Marple was a Fellow of the Geological Society of America, and member of the Paleontological Society; Association of Geology Teachers, which she served as editor for a number of years; Sigma Xi; and the Ohio Academy of Science, Section C, Geology.

Mrs. Marple is survived by her husband, Nathan B. Marple III, and two sons, Nathan B., IV. and Dudley T. F.

Dr. Boris Podolsky, Professor of Physics at Xavier University, was born in Taganrog, Russia, June 29, 1896, and died November 28, 1966. He was 14 when he emigrated to this country in 1911. He later attended the University of Southern California and earned his B.S. degree in electrical engineering in 1918, and later his M.A. degree in mathematics from the same institution. He was awarded his Ph.D. degree by California Institute of Technology. From 1928–30 he was a National Research Council Fellow at California Institute of Technology and at the University of Leipzig. He was later named as a National Research Associate.

The next stage in his professional career was a return to the Soviet Union, where he became Director of Theoretical Physics at the Ukrainian Physio-Technical Institute at Kharkov. While there he published a number of papers jointly with V. Fock and P.A.M. Dirac. He returned to the United States in 1933 and worked at the Institute for Advanced Study at Princeton. While at Princeton, he was joint author with Albert Einstein and N. Rosen of a paper entitled, "Can Quantum-Mechanical Description of Physical Reality be Considered Complete?" In 1935 he became assistant professor of Mathematical Physics at the University of Cincinnati, where he attained full professorship in 1951. He joined the Faculty of Xavier University in 1961, where he was Professor of Physics at the time of his death.

Professor Podolsky's interests were in the fields of quantum theory, electro-dynamics, relativity, and information theory. He joined the Ohio Academy of Science in 1950 and was elected a Fellow in 1957. He belonged to Section E, Physics and Astronomy.

Andrew Stauffer, a member of the faculty at Ohio Northern University, died on April 21, 1966, in Lima Memorial Hospital after a brief illness. He was born in Kansas on December 17, 1887. He was 78 at the time of his death. He was awarded a B.S. degree by Ohio Northern University in 1915. He also attended the University of Wisconsin, the University of Chicago, and The Ohio State University, where he earned a B.Sc. in Agriculture and an M.S. degree.

Mr. Stauffer's professional career including teaching in the rural schools of Allen and Hardin Counties, two years at Bluffton College, and six years at Ohio Northern University. He then went to Chicago, where he taught at Wright Junior College for 19 years. In 1953 he returned to Ohio Northern University as Chairman of the Biology Department. In 1958 he was named chairman of the Natural Science Division at Ohio Northern University.

His interest in the biological sciences is reflected by his membership in the Ohio College Biology Teachers Association, American Forestry Association, Prairie Club, Institute of Biological Science, Genetics Society of America, the Golden Years Club, the American Association for the Advancement of Science (Fellow), and the Ohio Academy of Science, Section J, Conservation. He was also the official representative to the Academy of Ohio Northern University, an institutional member of the Academy. He was the author of a widely-used text entitled Introductory Biology.

He is survived by his widow and by two sons, Royce and Tom.

Dr. Homer Hamilton Williams died on October 19, 1966, at his office in Dayton, of acute myocardial failure. In addition to his professional service as a practicing physician, he had been Commissioner of Health in Dayton since 1957.

Dr. Williams was born in Uhrichsville, Ohio, on December 19, 1890. He was a graduate of
the College of Medicine, The Ohio State University, and interned at St. Elizabeth Hospital in Dayton. He served two years in the U. S. Army as a medical officer in charge of pathology and bacteriology at a number of posts. In his private practice he operated a clinical laboratory until his appointment as Health Commissioner. He had also been consulting bacteriologist for the Dayton State Hospital. For a number of years he taught courses in public health, bacteriology, epidemiology, and preventive medicine at the University of Dayton.

He was a member of the Ohio State Food Service Board, the Family Foundation, and past president of both the Cities' Public Health League and the Ohio Social Hygiene Society. He was a founder of the Montgomery County Nutrition Society. He joined the Ohio Academy of Science, Section D, Medical Sciences, in 1966.

Under his guidance, the Dayton Health Division was the first in the United States to have a nutritionist on its staff, the first to operate a free camp for diabetic children, and the first to combine public health nursing with the visiting nurses' program. He was a pioneer in the bacterial control of restaurant sanitation, the pasteurization of dairy products, diptheria and polio immunization, testing babies for phenylkeytonuria, and the establishment of a public health alcoholism center.

He is survived by his widow, Pauline Olinger, who resides in Dayton.

Submitted by Necrology Committee

LINDEN F. EDWARDS
W. A. RICE
GUY-HAROLD SMITH, Chairman